Document Pack

. PEN Mark James LLM, DPA, DCA
oo Sir Gar B Pif Weithredr
< . ief Executive,
Carmarthenshwer Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP
Q=2 County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP
n ¢ Y
ty Cov™

WEDNESDAY, 12 SEPTEMBER 2018

TO: THE EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER FOR CULTURE,
SPORT AND TOURISM

| HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND A MEETING OF THE
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR
CULTURE, SPORT AND TOURISM WHICH WILL BE HELD IN
REGENERATION MEETING ROOM, COUNTY  HALL,
CARMARTHEN, AT 10.00 AM, ON WEDNESDAY,
19™ SEPTEMBER, 2018 FOR THE TRANSACTION OF THE
BUSINESS OUTLINED ON THE ATTACHED AGENDA.

Mark_James cee

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

@ PLEASE RECYCLE

Democratic Officer: Martin S. Davies

Telephone (direct line): 01267 224059

E-Mail: MSDavies@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
Ref: AD016-001

w Sir i hf  ECHCNGorarleinamdani
omer Sir Ga_r www.sirgar.lyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
o % YOURCOUNciLdoitonline
nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



AGENDA

1. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTEREST

2. DECISION RECORD - 18™ JUNE 2018 3-4

3. PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AT CARDI BACH, LLANBOIDY WARD 5-16

Note:- The press and public are not be entitled to attend the meeting. The decision record
will be published normally within 3 working days.

= ' .
oo Sir Gar R EICH cyNGorarleinamdani

p . wwwsirgarllyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire

Your counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

G, =\
0 W
Uty Cowt©



A“%en altem 2

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR
CULTURE, SPORT AND TOURISM

MONDAY, 18 June 2018
PRESENT: Councillor: P. Hughes-Griffiths (Executive Board Member).
The following officers were in attendance:
H Parsons, Assistant Marketing & Media Manager

K. Thomas, Democratic Services Officer

Democratic Services Committee Room, - County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP. - 2.00 -
2.30 pm

1. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTEREST.

Councillor Minute Item(s) Nature of Interest

P. Hughes- 3 — Event Support Fund | He lives across the road from

Griffiths Applications the location of the Gwyl
Canol y Dre 2018 Event

2. DECISION RECORD - 23RD MAY 2018.

RESOLVED that the decision record of the meeting held on the 237 May,
2018 be signed as a correct record.

3. EVENT SUPPORT FUND APPLICATIONS.

(Note: Councillor P. Hughes-Griffiths declared a personal interest in the Gwyl
Canol y Dre 2018 event).

The Executive Board Member considered a report providing details of applications
received for assistance from the Event Support Fund which had been assessed
against set criteria on the basis of their contribution to the Authority’s Tourism,
Community and Economic strategic aims.

RESOLVED that:
3.1 the following applications for assistance from the Event Support Fund

be approved, subject to the terms and conditions indicated in the
criteria for the fund:-

Event Award
Gwyl Canol y Dre 2018 £2,000
Festival of the Celts 2018 £685

Llandeilo Music Festival 2018 £1,000
Ammanford Miners Fortnight 2018 £1,000

3.2 in accordance with the fund criteria the following applications be not
supported

| Llanelli LGBTQ +Day 2018 |

o Sir GarJh EICH CYNGOrarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . ]
o oo YOuRr counciL doitonline Page 3
“nty Cow www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Pembrey Garden Show 2018

Small Gatherings 2018

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER DATE

= - .
onso Sir Gar B EICH cYNGORarleinamdani

? . www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire
Page 4 >

YOur counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

G, =222\
o"l)py Co\“\o




Agenda Iltem 3

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR
CULTURE, SPORT AND TOURISM

19™ SEPTEMBER 2018
Executive Board Member: Portfolio:
Clir Peter Hughes Griffiths Culture, Sport & Tourism

PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AT CARDI BACH, LLANBOIDY WARD

Purpose:

Application to Register a Public Right of Way, under section 53 schedule 14 of the Wildlife &
Countryside Act (1981).

Recommendations / key decisions required:

That the application be approved and the Authority make the necessary Definitive Map
Modification Order.

Reasons:

The application satisfies the tests laid out under section 53 of the Wildlife & Countryside Act,
1981, namely that there is sufficient evidence to show that a Public Right of Way exists, and
should be added to the Definitive Map & Statement for the County.

Directorate: Environment

Name of Head of Service: Designation: Head of Highways and Tel No: 01267 228150

Transport Email Address:
SGPilliner@carmarthenshire.gov
.uk

Steve Pilliner

. . : Tel No: 01554 742214
Report Author: De§|gnat|on. Countryside Access '
' Officer Email Address:
Jason Lawday jlawday@carmarthenshire.gov.u
k

o Sir Gar EICH cYNGorarleinamdani
o Sir Gér www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .

A YOUR counciLdoitonline

www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales Page 5

e
ngy Cow®


mailto:SGPilliner@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:SGPilliner@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
file:///C:/Users/MelJJones/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/X7ORVPO9/jlawday@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
file:///C:/Users/MelJJones/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/X7ORVPO9/jlawday@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Declaration of Personal Interest (if any):
None

Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any):
N/A

DECISION MADE:

Signed:
DATE:
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER

The following section will be completed by the Democratic Services Officer in attendance
at the meeting

Recommendation of Officer YES / NO
adopted

Recommendation of the Officer
was adopted subject to the
amendment(s) and reason(s)
specified:

Reason(s) why the Officer’s
recommendation was not
adopted:

o Sir Gar EICH cYNGorarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . )
> YOur counciLdoitonline

NS
Cp =220

Pag e 6 nty Cow www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR
CULTURE, SPORT AND TOURISM

19™ SEPTEMBER 2018

PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AT CARDI BACH, LLANBOIDY WARD

1. BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT.

The report is seeking the approval to make an Order to register a previously unrecorded
Public Right of Way by adding it to the Definitive Map & Statement of Public Rights of Way for
the County of Carmarthenshire.

The County Council has a statutory duty to ensure that the Definitive Map & Statement for the
County is correct, as required by the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, section 53(2).

2. OTHER OPTIONS AVAILABLE AND THEIR PROS AND CONS:

Section 53 of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 places a DUTY on the Local Authority to
keep the Definitive Map & Statement under continuous review, therefore we have no option
but to process the application and make the Order.

The landowner may agree to carry out a Public Path Dedication / Creation Order. This is
sometimes done as the most expedient way to record a Public Right of Way. It may also
allow for the adjustment of the route, where desired / agreed.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

o Sir Gar EICH cYNGorarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . )
> YOur counciLdoitonline

NS
Cp =220

"y o www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales Pag e 7



IMPLICATIONS

| confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / Heads
of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this report :

Signed: S. G. Pilliner Head of Highways and Transport

Policy and Legal Finance ICT Risk Organisational Physical
Crime & Management | Development Assets
Disorder Issues

NONE YES YES NONE NONE NONE NONE
2. Legal

Subject to approval an Order will be made in accordance with Legal Powers set out in section
53 of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981.

3. Financial

The cost of making, publishing and confirming the Order will be approximately £1000, depending
on fluctuation in advertising costs. As a statutory duty, the County Council is liable for these
costs. There may be additional costs if objections are received, and the Order is referred to
Welsh Government.

o Sir Gar EICH cYNGorarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . )
> YOur counciLdoitonline

¢ 222Xy )
Page 8 %y o www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below
Signed: S. G. Pilliner Head of Highways and Transport

1. Scrutiny Committee — N/A

2. Local Member

Clir. Dorian Phillips — ‘As the County Councillor for the Llanglydwen and Login area, | fully
support the proposal of opening the old Cardi Bach railway line, which | believe will be a
tremendous attraction for visitors to the area. | can also confirm that | regularly used to walk
the line back in the sixties.’

Community / Town Council
Llanboidy CC — Consulted —

‘The Council strongly support the claim that it should be a right of way.’
Cilymaenllwyd CC — Consulted.

4. Relevant Partners

Applicant 1 — Mrs. B. Vessey (deceased)
Applicant 2 — Mrs. P. Kiernan

Mr. G. Dickman (landowner)

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Auto Cycle Union — no comments received

British Horse Society — no comments received

Byways & Bridleways Trust — no comments received
Cyclists Touring Club — no comments received
Carmarthenshire Riders — no comments received

The Ramblers Association — no comments received

Area Ramblers Representative — no comments received
Carmarthenshire Local Access Forum — no comments received
Open Spaces Society — no comments received

Welsh Trail Riders Association — no comments received
Open Spaces Society — no comments received

6. Other
Login Community Association — supports application

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection
Cardi Bach DMMO RW2/18/J/ | Public Rights of Way, Mynydd Mawr Woodland Park, Heol
application 1 sub-file Hirwaun Olau, Tumble, Carmarthenshire, SA14 6HU.
Cardi Bach DMMO As above As above

application 2

Consultant report As above As above

Carmarthenshire . )
> YOur counciLdoitonline

o Sir Gar EICH CYNGorarleinamdani
omeer Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru
> www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales Page 9

e
gy Cown®



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT
MEETING OF EBM CULTURE, SPORT AND TOURISM

19™ SEPTEMBER 2018

PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AT CARDI BACH, LLANBOIDY WARD

Purpose: Application to Register a Public Right of Way, under section 53 and schedule 14 of
the Wildlife & Countryside Act (1981).

Head of Service & Designation. Directorate Telephone No.
Steve Pilliner, Head of Highways &Transport Environment 01267 228150
Author & Designation Directorate Telephone No
Jason Lawday, Countryside Access Assistant Environment 01554 742214

1. BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

The report is seeking the approval to make an Order to register a previously unrecorded
Public Right of Way by adding it to the Definitive Map & Statement of Public Rights of
Way for the County of Carmarthenshire.

The County Council has a statutory duty to ensure that the Definitive Map & Statement
for the County is correct, as required by the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, section
53(2).

1. KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED, IF ANY

Approval from the Executive Board Member for Regeneration and Leisure to make the
necessary Definitive Map Modification Order.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That the application be approved and the Authority make the necessary Definitive
Map Modification Order.

3. REASON

The application satisfies the tests laid out in section 53(3)(C)(i), namely that there is
sufficient evidence to show that a public right of way exists, and should be added to the
Definitive Map & Statement for the County.

e )i EICH cYNGORaArleinamdani Page 11
oneer Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
o <= Your counciLdoitonline
“nty Cou® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



4. BACKGROUND AND EXPLANATION OF ISSUES

In 2001 Carmarthenshire County Council received an application to record a Public Right
of Way which follows a disused railway line between the villages of Login and
Llanglydwen, in Llanboidy Ward. The route passes through two Communities, Llanboidy
and Cilmaenllwyd. A second application was made one year later which included the
same route. Initial investigations were carried out, but both applications remained
unresolved. In 2017 the Council received a request for an update from one of the
applicants. In response it was decided that the applications should be prioritised, and for
both cases to be concluded.

Applicants can apply to Welsh Government if dissatisfied with the Local Authority’s’
progress / decisions, and in this case the first application was referred to WG one year
after the application was made. The County Council responded by stating that the
application was on a prioritisation list, and would be processed in due course.

The application was made in response to a section of the application route being closed
to the public via locked gates and notices, following the acquisition of the property by a
new landowner. Over the intervening time period the remainder of the land has been
acquired by the same landowner.

The Council has now concluded their investigations and provided a report with a
recommendation that a Public Right of Way (footpath) be added to the Definitive Map &
Statement for the County.

The landowner has contested the application, and provided their own evidence, as part of
the consultation carried out.

The local elected member for the Ward of Llanboidy has been consulted. The County
Councillor supports the application. Both Llanboidy and Cilymaenllwyd Community
Councils have been consulted.

It is now our intention to carry out a Definitive Map Modification Order to record a Public
Right of Way. Once the Order is made there will be a statutory consultation carried out
with our statutory consultees, plus interested parties and the general public. This will be
in the form of notices in the press and on site, plus direct mailing to consultees. If there
are no objections, then the County Council can confirm the Order, and it will come into
force. If there are valid objections to the Order, then the Order will need to be referred to
Welsh Government for an independent decision. If new information is discovered as a
result of the consultation, then it may be necessary to re-examine the case.

Page 12 o sic AR EICH cYNGorRarleinamdani
omeer Sir Gar www.sirgar.lyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
o <= Your counciLdoitonline
“nty Cou® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



CONCLUSIONS

We are satisfied that the above Diversion Order meets the tests laid out in section
53(3)(c)(i) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act, 1981, namely:

The discovery by the authority of evidence which (when considered with all other relevant

evidence available to them) shows —

(i) That a right of way which is not shown in the map and statement subsists or is
reasonably alleged to subsist over land in the area to which the map relates, being
a right of way such that the land over which the right subsists is a public path, a
restricted byway or, subject to section 54A, a byway open to all traffic.

If the Order is made the County Council will carry out a further 42 day public consultation,
as required by the 1981 Act.

5. OTHER OPTIONS AVAILABLE, AND THEIR PROS AND CONS
Section 53 of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 places a DUTY on the Local Authority
to keep the Definitive Map & Statement under continuous review, therefore we must
process the application and make the Order.
The landowner may agree to carry out a Public Path Dedication / Creation Order. This is
sometimes done as the most expedient way to record a Public Right of Way. It may also
allow for the adjustment of the route, where desired / agreed.

6. COMMUNITY STRATEGY INTEGRATION TOOL

7. IMPLICATIONS:

1. POLICY AND CRIME & DISORDER - N/A

2. LEGAL

The Order will be made in accordance with Legal Powers set out in section 53 of
the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981.

3. FINANCE

The cost of making, publishing and confirming the Order will be approximately
£1000, depending on fluctuation in advertising costs. As a statutory duty, the
County Council is liable for these costs. There may be additional costs if objections
are received, and the Order is referred to Welsh Government.

e )i EICH cYNGORaArleinamdani Page 13
oneer Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
o <= Your counciLdoitonline
“nty Cou® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



4. ICT - N/A

5.RISK ASSESSMENT - N/A
6.STAFFING — N/A
7.PHYSICAL ASSETS - N/A

8. FEEDBACK FROM CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN
8.1SCRUTINY COMMITTEE & DATE - N/A
8.2LOCAL MEMBER (S) TO BE NAMED AND COMMENTS INCLUDED, IF ANY

Clir. Dorian Phillips — ‘As the County Councillor for the Llanglydwen and Login
area, | fully support the proposal of opening the old Cardi Bach railway line, which
| believe will be a tremendous attraction for visitors to the area. | can also confirm
that | regularly used to walk the line back in the late sixties.’

8.3COMMUNITY TOWN COUNCIL (S)

Llanboidy CC — ‘The Council strongly support the claim that it should be a right of
way.’
Cilmaenllwyd CC — no comments received

8.4 RELEVANT PARTNERS
Applicant 1 — Mrs. B. Vessey (deceased)
Applicant 2 — Mrs. P. Kiernan
Mr. G. Dickman (landowner)

5. STAFF SIDE REPRESENTATIVES
Auto Cycle Union — no comments received
British Horse Society — no comments received
Byways & Bridleways Trust — no comments received
Cyclists Touring Club — no comments received
Carmarthenshire Riders — no comments received
The Ramblers Association — no comments received
Area Ramblers Representative — no comments received
Carmarthenshire Local Access Forum — no comments received
Open Spaces Society — no comments received
Welsh Trail Riders Association — no comments received
Carmarthenshire Tourist Association — no comments received

6. OTHER

Login Community Association — supports application

Page 14 o i ca g EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
omeer Sir Gar www.sirgar.lyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
o <= Your counciLdoitonline
“nty Cou® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



9. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THE REPORT

Title of Document | File Ref Where available for public
No. inspection
Cardi Bach DMMO RW2/18/JL/ Public Rights of Way, Mynydd Mawr
application 1. sub-file Woodland Park, Heol Hirwaun Olau,
Tumble, Carmarthenshire, SA14 6HU

Cardi Bach DMMO As above As above

application 2

Consultant Report As above As above

PN
omeor Sir Gar B

Carmarthenshire

Q, =222\
Ofllny Cow®

EICH cYNGORarleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

YOur couNciL doitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 15




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 DECISION RECORD - 18TH JUNE 2018
	3 PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AT CARDI BACH, LLANBOIDY WARD
	Report


